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          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. Welcome to this Parks Committee meeting on

          4  this sixth day of December.  I'm Wendell Foster,

          5  Chairman of the Committee, and facing me directly is

          6  Council Member Provenzano, and to her right is

          7  Council Member Robinson, and to my witnesses, our

          8  legal staff here, General Practotem, Frank Neely and

          9  others, Rudy is here to make sure we do the right

         10  thing, from the Finance Division, excuse me, he is

         11  going to tell us whether we have enough money to do

         12  these things.

         13                 We're here today to have hearings and

         14  vote on Intro. No. 757- A, Council Members

         15  Provenzano and others, and 10 others; am I correct?

         16                 MR. NEELY:  Yes, Sir, they are all

         17  combined - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  They're all

         19  combined and we were call you when it is time to

         20  vote.  Ms. Provenzano is not interested in

         21  testifying, and she is desirous that we vote in

         22  favor of her bill.  Is that right, Councilwoman?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  What is

         24  that?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  I said you don't
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          2  care to testify.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right.  And

          5  the others are Harold Rapkin Plaza, Ramblersville-

          6  Hawtree Memorial Bridge, Donna and Michele Blanchard

          7  Plaza, Arthur Hayes Way.

          8                 All right, let's, since you're here

          9  to testify, we have been joined by Councilman

         10  Linares, we will here your testimony.  Would you

         11  identify yourselves for the record and just begin

         12  your testimony, please?  We are meeting in this room

         13  because every room here is tied up today, and let's

         14  see, Michael McLeer is here for Donna and Michele

         15  Blanchard, and is that it, just one of you? And

         16  invited also, Crissy McLeer, also.  Ms. Crissy

         17  McLeer, would you begin by telling us who you are,

         18  we're recording this electronically, and tell us

         19  what is on your mind?  And then we shall hear from

         20  the young man.

         21                 We have been joined by Council Member

         22  Golden from Brooklyn.

         23                 Would you begin?

         24                 MS. MCLEER:  I'm the daughter of

         25  Donna.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Can you speak,

          3  can you hear? All right, they can hear you, thank

          4  you.

          5                 MS. MCLEER: I'm the daughter of Donna

          6  Blanchard and sister of Michele Blanchard.  I would

          7  like to rename 92nd and Fort Hamilton Parkway after

          8  them.  They were hit and killed by a truck seven

          9  years ago, and the driver of the van was never

         10  found.  And I think it would represent, something

         11  nice to do for the mother and the children of this

         12  marriage.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  I understand,

         14  thank you very much.  Sir.

         15                 MR. MCLEER:  I'm the same, I'm the

         16  son.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Give you name

         18  for the record.

         19                 MR. MCLEER:  Michael Mcleer.  And

         20  we're here to see that, to help Mr. Golden here,

         21  that the street get renamed.  I think it would be a

         22  great think for the community to recognize her. She

         23  was an extraordinary woman of the neighborhood.  And

         24  that is why we're here.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Of course, you
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          2  two would think so.

          3                 MR. MCLEER:  Sure, sure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  And we're going

          5  to have Mr. Golden tell us just how right you are

          6  and why we should this.  All right, Council Member

          7  Golden.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Thank you.  I

          9  would like to thank my constituents for coming out

         10  here today to testify before the Committee and ask,

         11  request that the street be renamed in honor of their

         12  mother and sister.

         13                 It's pretty sad what happened at that

         14  location. It's seven years ago, and there was no

         15  resolve with the truck that struck and killed them.

         16  There was never an arrest, there was never, I guess,

         17  a closure for the family on exactly what happened to

         18  their family.  And it was like that, (snapping

         19  fingers), you know, you got up that morning, went to

         20  school, did what you had to do, and come home from

         21  school or from work and your family is gone from

         22  you.

         23                 And of course, the City of New York,

         24  or the MTA I should say, has not been very

         25  responsive to the needs of the family either.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  They have not

          3  been?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  No, look at

          5  what they have been able to, here is a residential

          6  community of apartment buildings, and they have

          7  taken and made it a roadway for buses. And the

          8  transportation for MTA buses, they have put one,

          9  two, three, four lines on that street in the past

         10  two years.  And, you know, it is only a tragedy

         11  waiting to happen, and we asked the MTA to do the

         12  correct thing, and at least take one or two of the

         13  routes off of that Fort Hamilton Parkway, but they

         14  have been unresponsive to us and it's a shame that

         15  they're going to force the B- 70 bus on us, and the

         16  buses coming out of Staten Island, the three routes

         17  from Staten Island.

         18                 And it is very difficult for the

         19  family to stand on the corner, still live there,

         20  still live in the community and watch all this

         21  activity and traffic, and it should not be on a

         22  residential street, and it is only a matter of time

         23  before somebody else is killed or maimed because of

         24  the heavy congestion of buses.

         25                 We received over 400 petitions from
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          2  the residents since recording the legislation.

          3  Donna Blanchard was born and raised in Bay Ridge and

          4  attended Saint Patrick's School, which is only a

          5  couple of blocks away from this location, and Fort

          6  Hamilton High School.  Donna Blanchard had extreme

          7  love and respect for her children, her family, and

          8  her children were the center of her life and would

          9  spend as much as possible with her children,

         10  including help with the homework, recreation and so

         11  on.

         12                 When Donna and Michele were killed

         13  the family changed.  Since that time, things have

         14  never been the same for any member of the family,

         15  all that are left are memories.  Michele was just

         16  four- years- old.  Michele enjoyed everyone around

         17  here.  All that is left is her memory, and the lives

         18  of both Donna and Michele were cut very short.

         19                 In closing, I would like to thank you

         20  for your attention and thank again her children for

         21  coming out here today to testify, and the time of

         22  the Committee to listen to us and hopefully the

         23  tribute to their Mom and their sister that we name

         24  this Avenue after.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  May I thank you,
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          2  Council member, for bringing this to our attention.

          3  I ensure the son and daughter that we will act

          4  favorably.

          5                 People do not understand,

          6  constituents do not understand that we do not

          7  control the MTA.  And when something happens they

          8  jump on us and say, why don't you do this, why don't

          9  you do that?  They are hard- hearted, a hard- headed

         10  group, but I know the Council member there, you will

         11  continue to fight for what is right.

         12                 Thank you for coming, and if there is

         13  nothing more, you can be excused.

         14                 MR. MCLEER:  All right, thank you.  I

         15  appreciate the Committee's time.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  And enjoy the

         17  holiday, because- -

         18                 MR. MCLEER:  I will.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  - -  God

         20  promised never to leave you helpless, okay?

         21                 MR. MCLEER:  Thank you.

         22                 COUNSEL OF THE COMMITTEE:  Mr.

         23  Chairman, just for the record, there was

         24  typographical error in the spelling of Michele

         25  Blanchard's name.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Just a moment,

          3  Council member, just wait one second, just one

          4  minute, excuse me, continue this please.

          5                 COUNSEL OF THE COMMITTEE:  Yes, I was

          6  just saying for the record, there was typographical

          7  error in the original introduction of the spelling

          8  of Michele's name, and we have corrected that in the

          9  amended bill that we're about to vote on.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         13  much.  In other words, this typographical error,

         14  they have corrected.

         15                 COUNSEL OF THE COMMITTEE:  Yes, we

         16  fixed it.  You can take that with you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you.

         20                 MR. MCLEER:  Thank you, gentlemen.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, thank

         22  you, enjoy the holiday and God bless you.

         23                 Are you ready now, Ms. Robinson?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Come and have a
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          2  seat.  Council Member Robinson.  All right, just

          3  squeeze yourselves in here as much as you can.  We

          4  thank you for having been with us last week to show

          5  us that you meant business, and you're here again

          6  today to show us you mean business, and with your

          7  Councilwoman, we know you mean business.  So

          8  Councilwoman Robinson, would you please tell us what

          9  we're going to do at this time?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:  Thank you,

         11  Chairman Foster.  Once again, I submit to you the

         12  street renaming for David Allen.  David Carl Allen

         13  was a member of the New York City Police Department

         14  and he was a Detective and was part of the Community

         15  Affairs Unit.

         16                 Representing here today, you have

         17  Sergeant Rodriguez, and Sergeant Rodriguez is

         18  retired, and Sergeant Boatwright and Jeanette

         19  Morales, and they will speak of David. They worked

         20  very closely with David Allen.

         21                 And I would just ask that the

         22  Committee would vote favorably in the passage of

         23  this legislation, as we hear from those people who

         24  worked so closely with David, who was loved by the

         25  community and the Department.  And this would
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          2  certainly be a worthy tribute to his honor and to

          3  his memory.

          4                 I would also ask at this time, that I

          5  have to be excused because I have to go vote up in

          6  the other Committee at this time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Would you come

          8  right back to us?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:  I will come

         10  right back, excuse me.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Now you better

         12  come back, the way you - -  I want you to understand

         13  that what little hair I had, she practically made me

         14  lose it.  It's only gender, so it's only gender.

         15                 Now all of you need not testify,

         16  unless you wish to, which you may, if you so desire.

         17    We are, I'm going to tell you, if you promise not

         18  to tell anyone, we're going to pass it.

         19                 So who will be the first to speak?

         20  Now don't think about it, just open your mouth.

         21  Where are the forms, did you fill them out yet?

         22  Give them to me and then I will decide it, all

         23  right, since you are all hesitant to say I will be

         24  the first.

         25                 Thank you, okay, thank you very much,
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          2  thank you for coming.  And it was very nice of you

          3  to come last week, you were quite supportive just to

          4  be here.

          5                 Sergeant Nelson Rodriguez, since I

          6  received you as first.  We are being recorded

          7  electronically.  We apologize for not being able to

          8  go upstairs, because every room is occupied today.

          9  Would you like to sit down and just tell us what is

         10  on your mind?

         11                 SGT. RODRIGUEZ:  Yes, Sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you,

         13  Sergeant.  Identify yourself for the record.

         14                 SGT. RODRIGUEZ:  Yes, Sir.  I am

         15  Sergeant Nelson Rodriguez of Community Affairs in

         16  the Borough of Brooklyn North.

         17                 I had not planned to speak today, but

         18  I felt so strongly about this that I came down and

         19  kind of forced my way in.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right.

         21                 SGT. RODRIGUEZ:   I'm a Puerto Rican

         22  New Yorker, born and raised in Brooklyn North.

         23  Tough upbringing, a single parent, two brothers, I

         24  now represent the Chief of the Borough in Community

         25  Affairs, some 30 years later.  I pale in comparison

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS

          2  to Detective Allen.

          3                 Detective David Allen represented

          4  Bedford- Stuyvesant and the African- American

          5  community in a way that two minutes here could not

          6  begin to touch.  We still have hundreds of children

          7  that remember him.  He was a phenomenal example to

          8  the Police Department and to Bedford- Stuyvesant.

          9  You know, you're talking about a guy who worked not

         10  five days a week, 45 hours a week, but who was on

         11  call when he was needed.  I know this for a fact, a

         12  Deacon in his Church.

         13                 A tragic loss to the New York City

         14  Police Department.  We don't have enough quality

         15  African- Americans on the job.  I'm actively

         16  recruiting minorities constantly, and invoke his

         17  name.

         18                 It's difficult to speak about him.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  I understand.

         20  Your presence here, alone, speaks about him.

         21                 SGT. RODRIGUEZ:  Detective Allen was

         22  a good friend to Sergeant Boatwright, to Jeanette

         23  Morales, to Councilwoman Robinson.  To think of

         24  something that has been so well earned and deserving

         25  as Tompkins Avenue co- named in his name, to show
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          2  kids in the future that there is a way out of Bed-

          3  Sty without leaving Bed Sty.  There is a way out of

          4  Williamsburg, where I came from, without leaving

          5  Williamsburg.  I think was well earned, deserved and

          6  would be appropriate.

          7                 And I thank you for your time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

          9  much, Sergeant. All right, the next speaker is - -

         10                 We have been joined by Council Member

         11  Pinkett, who represents the District who we will

         12  hear of shortly.

         13                 Ms. Jeanette Morales, would you speak

         14  now, where is she, all right, thank you.  Just where

         15  you are, we will pick you up.  Just tell us who you

         16  are.

         17                 MS. MORALES:  My name is Jeanette

         18  Morales and I'm a police officer in the New York

         19  City Police Department.

         20                 I come before in reference to the co-

         21  naming Tompkins Avenue, Detective David Allen's Way.

         22                 David was assigned to the 79th

         23  Precinct in Bedford Stuyvesant, Brooklyn, on

         24  November of 1985.  He was on patrol until February

         25  of 1987, at which time he was assigned as a
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          2  Community Affairs Officer in the 79th Precinct.

          3                 I met David in 1989 when I was

          4  assigned to the 79th Precinct.  He welcomed me to my

          5  new home.  I was assigned as his partner in October

          6  of 1993.  He took me under his wing and taught me

          7  many things.  Detective Allen loved his job and the

          8  community he served.  He gave up his time

          9  unconditionally.

         10                 When a community member would come

         11  into our office for assistance or advice, David was

         12  always there to assist them. He was the best and is

         13  truly missed.

         14                 David was not only my partner, he was

         15  my friend, and I will always remember him.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 MS. MORALES:  It's okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you for

         20  coming. Sergeant.

         21                 SGT. BOATWRIGHT:  I'm a retired

         22  Sergeant Larry Boatwright, and I started working

         23  with David in 1987.  And Community Affairs is kind

         24  of a unique position to be in, in any precinct,

         25  because any precinct commander will tell you that
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          2  once you get transferred to any precinct, the first

          3  people they look for and to connect with will be the

          4  Community Affairs Officers.  And David Allen working

          5  in the 79th Precinct over the years, I'm sure that

          6  he has had a lot to do with a lot of the promotion

          7  that has taken place over the years with precinct

          8  commanders, that will be their careers.

          9                 That David, what can you say about

         10  the guy?  Why shouldn't we name Tompkins Avenue

         11  after him?  I mean, he epitomized the word Community

         12  Affairs.  There are a lot of things that David has

         13  done that people will never even hear about or even

         14  know about.

         15                 I will just give you one example.

         16  I'm not going to say what Sergeant Rodriguez, what

         17  he said about him a few minutes ago.  We had, in the

         18  79th Precinct, a drug problem down on Bedford Avenue

         19  and Franklin Avenue.  And back in the early eighties

         20  and the late eighties, the Yemen (phonetic) Warriors

         21  arrived at Bedford Avenue and Fulton Street, they

         22  did a fantastic job over there.  And David worked

         23  with the Muslims over, at that location.

         24                 And there were people in Washington,

         25  D.C., they heard about this phenomenon around
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          2  Bedford and Franklin Avenue up in Bed- Sty.  So

          3  anyone could come up and take a look at this program

          4  and see what it was all about, and they found out

          5  that David Allen was working with the Muslims around

          6  Franklin Avenue to clean up the drug problem and the

          7  prostitution that was going on around there.  And my

          8  precinct commander says to me, he says, you think

          9  that we will be able to get a meeting with the

         10  Muslims? Because if you remember back when, there

         11  was an incident up in the Mosque in Harlem, we had a

         12  cop that got killed and they did not want the cops

         13  in the Mosque the whole night.  But David Allen was

         14  persistent, he went to the Yemen and he had a good

         15  working relationship with them.  And wouldn't you

         16  know, I could not believe that we had, my Chief and

         17  people from Washington, D.C. Police Department

         18  sitting in this huge room without our weapons, no

         19  shoes on, having a meeting with the Muslims on

         20  Bedford and Franklin in the heart of Bed- Sty, who

         21  would have thought it.  And David Allen set that up.

         22                 There were days, the days of

         23  operating, that the Brooklyn Bridge, the Bensonhurst

         24  Capers, I can go on and on, David was Community

         25  Affairs.  People around Bed- Sty will tell you that
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          2  David was the man.  I mean, he was tall in statue,

          3  but he had a big heart.  I would always laugh that

          4  David would sometimes be sitting around and I would

          5  say, why have you got such large feet?  And he would

          6  say, Serge, after all I'm a big guy, you know. But

          7  he was really a sweetheart.  I mean, there is not a

          8  bad word that we can say about the guy.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         10  much, Sergeant. You did not give your, did not

         11  choose to speak, but just for the record, would you

         12  say who you are and say whether you're in favor of

         13  this or not.

         14                 MS. BREON: (phonetic).  I'm Police

         15  Officer Angela Breon.  I too work at Borough

         16  Community Affairs.  I did have the pleasure of

         17  knowing David Allen personally.  He was beyond what

         18  anyone could really describe in words.

         19                 I'm definitely in favor of this, we

         20  have all tried to put words together to describe

         21  him, but I think he was someone you just had to

         22  know.  He was a wonderful person, he was wonderful

         23  to the community.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  See what we

         25  would have missed had you not testified?  For
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          2  someone who did not care to testify, you and sister,

          3  Jeanette, did quite a job.

          4                 We're going to hear now from the

          5  person who knew him well and for many years,

          6  Councilwoman Mary Pinkett.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT:  Thank you

          8  very much.  I'm pleased also to testify in the sense

          9  for this because I knew David very, very well,

         10  because the 79th Precinct was in my district all

         11  through the years that you were talking about.  And

         12  Mr. Boatwright and I were good friends, and so was

         13  David and I very good friends.

         14                 He lived in my district, as a matter

         15  of fact, and I was very pleased and honored that he

         16  did reside there.  But most of all it was the

         17  demeanor of the man, the fact that he carried

         18  himself, not above anyone, but that he was always

         19  with people and for people.  And you could feel that

         20  from him.

         21                 I recall when the Muslims took over,

         22  they took Fulton Street and Franklin Avenue, and it

         23  was not a question of just taking it over in a way

         24  about saying I'm going to be in charge, but it was a

         25  way of taking care of the community and helping with
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          2  the protection, and the police did not know what to

          3  do at the moment, because they had a concept of what

          4  the Muslims were. That they were these angry people

          5  that you could not talk to, and David was, indeed,

          6  the person who was a conduit and communicatory

          7  between the police and the community, and I also had

          8  a good relation with them.  And when the business

          9  people said, oh, Councilwoman, you have got to talk

         10  to them and get them to open those stores.  Well,

         11  nobody was going to do that, because what they were

         12  doing was so beneficial to that community.  And I

         13  think David Allen was also working very hard to make

         14  sure that this community, which was expressed just

         15  by that kind of work.

         16                 He was the kind of man that pictured

         17  that Councilwoman Robinson brought forth at the last

         18  meeting, the smile. David's smile was something that

         19  I think it should have been used as a poster on any

         20  recruiting for the Police Department.  Because if

         21  anyone saw him with or without a uniform, and that

         22  smile, they would have enlisted, he had that kind of

         23  effect on them.  And in or out of the uniform, he

         24  would stop sometimes at our office and just sit and

         25  chat for a while.  But he was a persuasive person,
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          2  and he could persuade you, just by talking to you,

          3  and he would say, look, you have got to do this, you

          4  have to trust me, he wasn't usual loud, cut them up,

          5  shoot them out, you know, loud talking image that we

          6  have of police officers.  He was an effective,

          7  strong officer who knew who he was, knew the

          8  community, and they loved him and respected him.

          9                 And I think that changing Tompkins

         10  Avenue, what will it do?  It will say to the people

         11  in Bedford- Stuyvesant, not that you have to come

         12  out, you can stay right there in Bedford Stuyvesant

         13  because it is a beautiful place to live, and nobody

         14  has to come out of any place.  But you're right

         15  adjacent to the Bond King Park, which is part of

         16  your community, and you're right there walking on

         17  David Allen, what are we going to call it, Lane?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:  David Allen

         19  Way.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT:  Way, which

         21  is part of the strength of your community.  And this

         22  is who you are, and this is what you can be, and I

         23  certainly would support this change in the street

         24  name.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very
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          2  much, Councilwoman.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:  Council

          4  Member Foster, if I may, I just, in regards for the

          5  family, they are absent today because of a conflict

          6  with their working schedules.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  I understand.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:  They wanted

          9  to be here, so I just wanted to speak on behalf of

         10  the family to say that is the only reason they are

         11  not present today.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, we

         13  will try to see if they can be present when the sign

         14  goes up.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:  Certainly.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you very

         17  much.  We have been joined by Council Member Rivera.

         18                 And now we shall - -

         19                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         20  Member McCaffrey wants to be heard.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Yes, please, so

         22  we can hear him, and then we will - -  thank you all

         23  for coming.  And Ms. Jeanette never be ashamed that

         24  you became emotional, that shows your pride, your

         25  love and your commitment to this young man and what
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          2  we're doing.  And I think I can say, feel confident

          3  that we will pass this.  Thank you for coming, God

          4  bless you.

          5                 SGT. RODRIGUEZ:  Thank you.

          6                 SGT. BOATWRIGHT:  Thank you.

          7                 MS. MORALES:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Councilwoman

          9  Pinkett, just reminded me that if we do not pass

         10  this, she will beat us up, so it is going to be

         11  passed.  Thank you again.

         12                 All right, are you ready?

         13                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  He has, I

         14  think, four bills, I lose track.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Council Member

         16  McCaffrey, you know we're having a family meeting

         17  and they just welcome guests.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  I have

         19  just come to say I thank you very much, Mr. Chairman

         20  and I thank the members of the Committee.

         21  Obviously, the tragedy of 9/11 has really, in some

         22  places, torn neighborhoods apart with pain.  And my

         23  district having had many of the, as have all of our

         24  districts, fire officers and firefighters who have

         25  lost their lives.  My district had, in one case,
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          2  where we will hopefully have scheduled as the Plaza

          3  of Heroes, no fewer than 22 firefighters, in one

          4  location, lost their lives.

          5                 (The following written testimony was

          6  read into the record.)

          7

          8  John Downing Park

          9

         10                 Portions of the following

         11  biographical information were drawn from the New

         12  York Post and the Irish Voice newspapers.

         13                 John Downing, 40 years of age, was

         14  one of three firefighters who died and 50 others who

         15  were injured in a Father's Day fire in Astoria,

         16  Queens on June 17, 2001.

         17                 Survived by his wife Anne and

         18  children Joanne, age 7, and Michael, age 3, John

         19  Downing had an extended family that ranged from

         20  Queens County to Ireland. An eleven year Fire

         21  Department veteran, at the time of his tragic death

         22  he was assigned to Ladder Company 163.

         23

         24  Teddy White Place

         25
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          2  Lawrence Virgilio Playground

          3

          4  Boulevard of Bravery

          5

          6  Plaza of Heroes

          7

          8                 The four proposals listed above all

          9  refer to firefighters who lost their lives during

         10  the World Trade Center terrorist attack of September

         11  11, 2001. Where individuals are proposed to be

         12  memorialized, the information that follows was

         13  provided by Council Member McCaffrey. The other two

         14  proposals refer to groups of firefighters who died

         15  in the line of duty on September 11th.

         16

         17  Teddy White was born on July 25, 1971 to Edward and

         18  Regina White, in Boulevard Gardens in Woodside,

         19  Queens. His family grew to include brothers Jimmy,

         20  Chris and Billy, and a sister, Sue. Teddy attended

         21  kindergarten at Public School 151 and then went to

         22  the Corpus Christi School for eight years. After

         23  grammar school he continued at Monsignor McClancy

         24  High School from which he graduated in 1989.

         25                 On April 18, 1998, Teddy White
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          2  married his lovely wife Jennifer, and a daughter,

          3  Taylor, was born to the couple on December 16, 1999.

          4  The young family bought an apartment at Boulevard

          5  Gardens and settled there. Mr. White joined the New

          6  York City Fire Department and was assigned to Engine

          7  Company 230 in Brooklyn.

          8                 On September 11, 2001 Teddy White and

          9  the members of Engine Company 230 responded to the

         10  emergency brought on by the attacks on the World

         11  Trade Center. Mr. White died while attempting to

         12  save lives when the twin towers collapsed. He is

         13  survived by his wife, Jennifer, his daughter,

         14  Taylor, his parents, Edward and Regina, and four

         15  siblings.

         16                 Lawrence Virgilio. The following

         17  biographical information was printed in Dennis

         18  Duggan's New York Newsday column ("Recall Names,

         19  Forget Numbers") of September 21, 2001. It is

         20  reproduced here in its entirety both for the

         21  information provided and its poignancy.

         22                 "Lawrence Joseph Virgilio was born to

         23  be a firefighter.

         24                 He was tough when he had to be and

         25  tender when he needed to be. He grew up in Woodside,
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          2  the kind of small neighborly community Thorton

          3  Wilder protrayed im his play "Our Town." The

          4  difference was that Woodside is parted in the middle

          5  by the rumbling No. 7 elevated subway train.

          6                 Someone asked Virgilio's mother,

          7  Lucy, about his first name. "We named him Lawrence

          8  after the movie,'Lawrence of Arabia,' which had just

          9  come out," she said.

         10                 Fire Captain Dan Tracy, who worked

         11  with Virgilio, said the 38-year-old firefighter was

         12  "unwavering," and that he had a side job as a

         13  physical therapist.

         14                 "one of his patients was a famous

         15  wrestler - he was known as the Masked Marvel - who

         16  had cancer and was living in squalor on the Lower

         17  East Side," Tracy said. "larry grew to like him and

         18  took care of him as he was dying, buying him things

         19  like a refrigerator and a couch."

         20                 Tracy - chocked with emotion - told

         21  the story of the caring firefighter at his funeral

         22  yesterday. He got the packed house at St.

         23  Sebastian's Roman Catholic Church in Woodside

         24  laughing when he told of how nothing fazed Virgilio,

         25  who was trapped when the Twin Towers of the World
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          2  Trade Center collapsed last week.

          3                 "We were sitting in the kitchen in

          4  the firehouse," he said, "and I asked him to make

          5  some tea. He got the kettle, filled it with water,

          6  put it on the stove and lit it.

          7                 "The kettle went sky high because we

          8  had taped firecrackers to the bottom of it. Larry

          9  didn't say a word. He was unflappable."

         10                 Virgilio is one of more than 300

         11  firefighters who are missing and presumed dead, a

         12  number so obscene that Tracy vowed "we will never

         13  talk about their deaths using numbers. Their names

         14  will always be told."

         15                 Virgilio was one of three

         16  firefighters from star-crossed Squad 18 who were

         17  buried yesterday. The others were firefighters Eric

         18  Allen and Manuel Mojica.

         19                 Squad 18 on West 10th Street in the

         20  West Village was famous - before September 11 - for

         21  bearing the brunt of the biggest single loss of

         22  firefighters in the department's history, in 1966.

         23  That year, five out of 12 men who died at the Wonder

         24  drugstore fire on East 23rd wwere from Squad 18.

         25                 But fire is unforgiving and has no
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          2  memory and so it was left to the mourners, the

          3  priest, the bagpipers and Virgilio's family to

          4  conjure up his memory.

          5                 "He was a Woodside kid," Msgr. Joseph

          6  Finnerty said. "And he still lives here over on 59th

          7  Street."

          8                 Finnerty was standing in the

          9  vestibule of the church yesterday where the bells

         10  tolled, the subway rumbled and a church organ played

         11  a hymn. All of this under a steady drizzle.

         12                 "He was baptized here, he made his

         13  first Holy Communion here. And he was confirmed

         14  here," Finnerty said, herding a crew of five altar

         15  helpers, two of them girls, telling them, "when you

         16  hear the bagpipers, that means he's here."

         17                 They brought Virgilio up Roosevelt

         18  Avenue to 58th Street, the way they bring all

         19  firefighters to their church - on top of a fire

         20  engine from his own company and draped in purple.

         21                 It was unbearably sad and worse when

         22  the choir sang a song that is sung at almost all the

         23  firefighter funerals. It is called "Be Not Afraid"

         24  and it includes these lyrics:

         25                 If you walk amid the burning flame,
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          2  you shall not be burned.

          3                 Virgilio did walk among the flames

          4  because, like his brothers, he was trained to go in

          5  when most people are going out. It's why

          6  firefighting isn't a job, it s a mission.

          7                 No one has suffered more than the

          8  firefighters and their families, who now must take

          9  them to their graves during the coming days and

         10  weeks, the way they took Virgilio to Calvary

         11  Cemetery a few blocks from his church yesterday.

         12                 Woodside has been shattered by what

         13  happened in downtown Manhattan, Finnerty said.

         14                 "A lot of people from the parish are

         15  missing. This place is dealing with unbearable

         16  sadness," he said.

         17                 At the end of Mass, as eight

         18  firefighters carried Virgilio out of the church, a

         19  policeman named Edward Harrigan played "Taps." It

         20  was the loneliest sound on a gray lonely day.

         21                 Boulevard of Bravery. This proposal

         22  is intended to honor the members of New York Fire

         23  Department Special Unit Rescue Company 4 located at

         24  64-18 Queens Boulevard. This unit was one of the

         25  first to respond to the terrorist attacks at the
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          2  World Trade Center on September 11th. It is also the

          3  unit that suffered some of the greatest losses in

          4  the City.

          5                 Seven members of Rescue 4 perished in

          6  the collapse of the twin towers, that portion of

          7  Queens Boulevard that is located outside of Rescue 4

          8  would be designated as the Boulevard of Bravery.

          9                 Plaza of Heroes. This proposal is

         10  intended to honor the members of Squad 288, Hazmat

         11  1, located at 56-29 68th Street in Queens. This unit

         12  was one of the first to respond to the terrorist

         13  attacks at the World Trade Center on September 11th.

         14                 It is also the unit that suffered

         15  some of the greatest losses in this City. Eleven

         16  members of Hazmat 1 perished in the collapse of the

         17  Twin Towers. An intersection outside Hazmat 1, Perry

         18  Avenue and 68th Street would be designated as the

         19  Plaza of Heroes.

         20                 Fred Wilson Way.

         21                 The following biographical material

         22  was provided by the Wilson family. Fred Wilson was

         23  born Wilfred Wilson in Harlem on November 20, 1929

         24  to Siefert and Winifred Wilson. He received his

         25  diploma from Commerce High School and studied

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS

          2  liberal arts at the City University of New York.

          3                 Mr. Wilson began his dedicated career

          4  as a public servant as a defender of his country by

          5  enlisting in the United States Army from which he

          6  received an honorable discharge in August 1953. Upon

          7  discharge, Fred Wilson embarked on a successful

          8  twenty-two year career in the newspaper business and

          9  rose to the position of production supervisor for

         10  the New York Herald Tribune.

         11                 Fred Wilson married Currin Jones in

         12  September 1955 and had two children, Cheryl and

         13  Eric. Upon moving into the Rochdale Village

         14  Cooperative in Jamaica, Queens when it opened in the

         15  early 1960s, Mr. Wilson became significantly

         16  involved with his community. He served as a member

         17  of the Board of Directors of Rochdale Village and as

         18  president of the Rochdale Village Black Society. He

         19  was very involved in the education of his children

         20  and he became an active member of the local PTA. Mr.

         21  Wilson was also a member of the Pride of Jamaica

         22  Lodge 217.

         23                 In 1972, Fred Wilson was elected

         24  Democratic District Leader of the 32nd Assembly

         25  District and served in that capacity for twelve
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          2  years. As a part official, he became an active

          3  member of the Council of Black Elected Democrats of

          4  New York State. His district was very diverse and

          5  included blacks, whites, Jews and Gentiles. He

          6  quickly became a respected member of the Queens

          7  County Democratic Party Executive Committee.

          8                 Under Mr. Wilson's leadership, the

          9  32nd A.D. Regular Democratic Club became a major

         10  political force in the Southeast Queens community.

         11  Candidates for all levels of public office learned

         12  that the 32nd had a reputation for "delivering the

         13  vote" and vigorously sought the club's endorsement.

         14  His club also became a community center of sorts. A

         15  number of community organizations held meetings and

         16  functions there and residents from the surrounding

         17  area frequently came into Mr. Wilson's club seeking

         18  help for various problems.

         19                 In 1976, Fred Wilson became known as

         20  "Hollywood Fred" when he was selected by the

         21  Democratic National Committee to be flown to

         22  Hollywood to be featured in a film that was

         23  presented at the Democratic National Convention in

         24  New York. He looked upon this event as one of the

         25  major highlights of his career.
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          2                 Politics was his business but people

          3  were his passion. Mr. Wilson listened to the

          4  concerns of his constitutents and he took everyone's

          5  problems to heart. If there was an emergency, you

          6  could count on Fred Wilson 24 hours a day, seven

          7  days a week. Fred also gave special attention to

          8  getting young people involved in the political

          9  process. He knew that the vote could effect change.

         10  He mentored young people with discipline and

         11  guidance. Fred Wilson encouraged young people to

         12  volunteer in the community and he spent many hours

         13  working side by side with young folks.

         14                 Fred Wilson died in December 1984. He

         15  was survived by his wife, his two children and three

         16  grandchildren. In appreciative recognition of the

         17  many years of devoted service that he gave to the

         18  Jamaica community it is fitting that Bedell Street,

         19  between Baisley Boulevard and Farmers Boulevard, the

         20  site of Rochdale Village where he lived for over 20

         21  years, be named "Fred Wilson Way" in his honor.

         22                 Detective David Allen Way.

         23                 The following biographical material

         24  was submitted by the Allen family. David Carl Allen

         25  was born to Deacon Cleveland and Eloise Allen on
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          2  January 5, 1958 in Cumberland Hospital, Brooklyn,

          3  New York. He attended Public School 47, Brooklyn

          4  Academy Junior High School and George Westinghouse

          5  High School where he majored in electrical work. He

          6  also attended Baruch College where he received an

          7  Associate Degree. After college he was employed as

          8  an electrician.

          9                 In 1980, David Allen married Mary

         10  Campbell. The couple had three children, David Jr.,

         11  Antoinette, and Jason. On January 21, 1985 Mr. Allen

         12  realized his childhood ambition when he was

         13  appointed to the New York City Police Department and

         14  he was assigned to the Neighborhood Stabilization

         15  Unit in the 79th Precinct in Brooklyn where he

         16  remained for the balance of his career.

         17                 He was subsequently assigned to

         18  Community Affairs and promoted to Detective

         19  Specialist on July 28, 1999. As an active member of

         20  his community, Mr. Allen received numerous community

         21  awards and commendations.

         22                 On November 30, 2000, Detective

         23  Allen, a fifteen-year police veteran, died in a

         24  tragic accident while cleaning his service revolver.

         25  He was survived by two sons, David Jr. and Jason, a
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          2  daughter Antionette, his former wife, Mary, and two

          3  sisters, Veronica Jackson and Diane Fontaine.

          4                 In recognition of his many years of

          5  community service it is fitting that Tompkins Avenue

          6  between Flushing Avenue and Fulton Street, the site

          7  of the 79th Precinct, be named in his honor.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I believe

          9  what we heard from Officer Rodriguez from the Police

         10  Department, we will see an equivalent on the Fire

         11  Department side because Larry was that voice.

         12                 And, so, ask for your consideration

         13  on these items.

         14                 John Downing, he lost his life in the

         15  Father's Day fire and all of those structures.

         16                 So, I thank you very much, and I

         17  appreciate your consideration.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you,

         19  Council member, for bringing this to our attention.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  I

         21  apologize, but I have to run next door, - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Yes, you may.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  For Land

         24  Use.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Now we have all
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          2  of these coupled.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Yes, Sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Why don't we - -

          5                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  We can

          6  call the roll call, if you want?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Yes, let's do

          8  that.

          9                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  That

         10  you're voting on 757- A and filing Intro. 824, 988,

         11  990, 991, 992, 993, 994, 999, 1003 and 1004.  Roll

         12  call

         13                 Foster.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Aye on all.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Linares.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES:  Yes.

         17                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Robinson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:  Yes.

         19                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:

         20  Provenzano.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Yes on

         22  all.

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Rivera.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Yes on all.

         25                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Golden.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Aye on all.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  The vote

          4  stands at 6 in the affirmative, none in the

          5  negative, and the clerk is on his way with the

          6  reports for you to sign.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, now

          8  we have Harold Rapkin Plaza.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  That is

         10  my bill.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  That is you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Is that the one

         14  we have already voted on?

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Yes, Sir.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  We have voted on

         17  that.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Unless

         19  somebody else wants to speak, you're all done.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right.  I

         21  thank you all for coming and we will convene again

         22  on December 18th at one o'clock. All right, so

         23  please, listen to me carefully, if they criticize us

         24  for it and so forth, only three of you will be here

         25  to receive it. So we're trying to get everyone's
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          2  intro's up and voted on before we leave here and

          3  before we have a Christmas party.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Better to

          5  blame it on the old Council members.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  You're right,

          7  that is it, so you just blame it on us.

          8                 Now before I continue, do you care to

          9  speak on any of these things, or you just came in to

         10  vote.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  You're going to

         13  vote aye. Don't change our minds now.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  I wish I

         15  could vote.  I'm just here to support the long over-

         16  due renaming of Bedell Street to Fred Wilson Way.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  All right, thank

         18  you very much. All right, having heard Council

         19  Member, shall we not - -  oh, he is here.  We have

         20  already voted.

         21                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Yes, Sir,

         22  we have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Okay.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Foster.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  We did it
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          2  already.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  You want

          4  to count me out, you're welcome to do it.  All you

          5  have to do is get their signatures.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  This is our way

          7  of having you share your Christmas present with us.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Thank you very much.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT:  Mr.

         10  Chairman, I would like to ask if I may be added to

         11  the bill for Fred Wilson, what is the number?

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  999

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT:  999, and

         14  also that I be a co- prime on the one with Police

         15  Officer Allen, because he was in my district's

         16  precinct so many, many years.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you.  Any

         18  one else?  All right, thank you very much for

         19  coming.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Thank you.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 1:50 p.m.)

         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 6th day of December 2001.

         19
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          8

          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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